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Single or Sole Source

Major purchase - $$$$$$$$$$$$



Objectives
Genesis

Key techniques
1. Determine Need
2. Assess Competition
3. Gather Information
4. Welcome OSC
5. Run the Numbers
6. Negotiate



Genesis

Maintenance agreements

Equipment

DCJS

Software and applications systems



Maintenance Research

Articles

The Elephant in the Software 
Maintenance Room
Negotiating Better Maintenance 

Terms
 Industry Experts

http://dealarchitect.typepad.com/deal_architect/2009/02/the-elephant-in-the-software-maintenance-room.html
http://www.cio.com/article/29690/Negotiating_Better_Maintenance_Terms


Key Techniques

1. Determine Need
2. Assess Competition
3. Gather Information
4. Welcome OSC
5. Run the Numbers
6. Negotiate



What are we buying? 
Define the procurement:
 Best value procurement 
 On time, passes acceptance test
 Maintenance always available and trained
 Parts in stock now and future – (OEM)
 Financing incentives – trade in
 Penalties and bonus incentives
 Support future products 
 Corporate guaranty – Letter of Credit

1. Determine Need



1. Determine Need

How much?
Critical?
Risk exposure?
Alternatives

Response time:
2 hours
4 hours
Next day



1. Determine Need

http://www.experts-exchange.com/

50,000 experts

2.8 million solutions

250,000 concurrent users

Response rate – 46 minutes

http://www.experts-exchange.com/


Key Techniques

1. Determine Need
2. Assess Competition
3. Gather Information
4. Welcome OSC
5. Run the Numbers
6. Negotiate



2. Assess Competition
Real

Trade associations & exhibits

Users groups, sales force, blogs

M & A, D & B, Google, and Bing

Product lines – Harvest products



2. Assess Competition
Perceived

Bidders conference

Publicize your procurement, RFA’s

Bifurcate procurement

Written questions – both ways



Key Techniques
1. Determine Need
2. Assess Competition
3. Gather Information
4. Welcome OSC
5. Run the Numbers
6. Negotiate



3. Gather Information
OSC – number one resource
Vend Rep, Bureau of Contracts
Bureau of State Expenditures, Legal
Experience and interest of staff

Other agencies - similar procurement

Other agencies - same vendor
Procuring same services 
Common elements of procurement 



 Data from similar size companies, 
within your own geographic area, 
product mix 

 One or two unusual companies can 
skew the numbers

 If you can identify an industry group 
(e.g. - SIC code) data will be less 
distorted

3. Gather Information



Trade associations

State records, includes 
others/Federal Agencies

3. Gather Information



3. Gather Information

Bidders conferences let you know 
who is out there – as in competitors -
sign in 
Presentations by Offerers on how 

committed they are might also 
provide a window on organization 
expenses  – on the record
Public data – employment advertising
References, VendRep information



3. Gather Information

Yahoo Finance

Edgar

SEC

Vendor’s web site (annual 
report)











 Under Regulation FD (Fair Disclosure) 
companies can’t selectively disclose 
financials ... are increasingly publishing  
"guidance" on future financials when they 
report quarterly earnings. Searching a 
company's investor relations web site may 
prove fruitful.
 SEC, SEC Guide to Financial Statements –

http://www.sec.gov/investor/pubs/begfins
tmtguide.htm
 http://finance.yahoo.com

3. Gather Information



 Google, Bing, the Vendor
 http://www.census.gov/econ/index.html
 Dun & Bradstreet: sales, employees, net 

worth, nature of financing, credit worthiness, 
balance sheet / income statement / ratio data, 
law suits, public filings, liens, judgments 
 The Risk Management Association: your bank 

probably uses this to benchmark your 
performance so it’s well worth the money to 
know what it says
 Morningstar.com

3. Gather Information









3. Gather Information
 Under Regulation Fair Disclosure (FD), 

companies can no longer selectively 
disclose financial projections to Wall 
Street analysts or buy-side investors. 
Thus, companies are increasingly 
publishing their "guidance" on future 
financial metrics when they report 
quarterly earnings. Searching a 
company's investor relations web site may 
prove fruitful. 



3. Gather Information

 If you have access, Valueline, 
Wall Street Reports, DJNS, 
Hoovers  finance.yahoo.com

Google the Vendor

http://www.census.gov/econ/ind
ex.html

http://www.census.gov/econ/index.html


3. Gather Information
Bureau of Labor Statistics 

www.bls.gov
Labor Productivity and Costs
Labor Pay and Benefits - provides 

information on wages, earnings, 
and benefits by geography, 
occupation, and industry.
Labor Producer Price Index

http://www.bls.gov/


3. Gather Information
 US Department of Labor: reports 

hours, wages, and earnings reports 
by industry.

 US Census Bureau Economic Census: 
provides annual and trend data on 
sales, payroll, and number of 
employees by industry, product, and 
geography.



3. Gather Information

 US Census Business Expense Survey: 
reports sales, inventories, operating 
expenses, and gross margin by 
industry.

 US Census Annual Survey of 
Manufacturers: covers employment, 
plant hours, payroll, fringe benefits, 
capital expenditures, cost of materials, 
inventories, and energy consumption.



3. Gather Information
 Use data from similar size companies 

and, where possible, within your own 
geographic area. 
 Use a source that represents a large 

universe of inputs so that one or two 
unusual companies don’t skew the 
numbers. 
 Choose the industry group (usually 

based on NAICS  or SIC code) that 
best represents your business. 



3. Gather Information
VendRep
 In doing the vendor responsibility 

analysis we learn a LOT about the 
company 

 Especially if the product is built from 
subcomponents by subcontractors

We expect a long life cycle. Where does 
the cash flow come from to sustain?



3. Gather Information

VendRep Financial Questions
 Some of the “R&D” costs might pay for 

new development, BUT 

 Should the maintenance operation bear 
a charge of 9 per cent for R&D? – A 
question pointed out by OSC.



Vend Rep - Strategy
 Important – what is their business unit 

turnover strategy – are they committed –
do they grow in-house or by acquisition 
(Morpho – Motorola – Printrak)

 “Good” vendor invests in company, 
product

 Vendor presentations are good but beware 
of glossy brochures



Key Techniques
1. Determine Need
2. Assess Competition
3. Gather Information
4. Welcome OSC
5. Run the Numbers
6. Negotiate



4. Welcome OSC
Background - DCJS 
Processes fingerprints 
Maintains criminal history files
Serves law enforcement

24/7/365

 Fingerprint system can’t be 
“down”



4. Welcome OSC
Background - DCJS 

Current vendor is named in 
Executive Law

Must support Biometric 
identification 

SAFIS more than 10 years old

New biometric technology (SABIS)



4. Welcome OSC
Background - DCJS 
Two Offerers respond to SABIS RFP
 Incumbent was successful 
OEM is only maintenance provider
“System integration” maintenance
Need interim SAFIS maintenance 

for 3 years



4. Welcome OSC
DCJS goes where few agencies 

have gone before

October 2007 – DCJS approaches 
OSC regarding SABIS RFP
June 2008 – DCJS releases SABIS 

RFP
March 2008 – OSC starts SAFIS 

examination



Two Maintenance Contracts

SAFIS 
Interim Contract

(OSC examination)

SABIS
New Contract



OSC Examination

SAFIS

$2.8 million annual hardware and 
software maintenance

Cost-savings opportunity?



OSC Examination

Direct Costs
 Personnel
 Parts (maybe)
 R&D (maybe)

Gross Margin



OSC Examination

Determine need

24/7/365

 Interview IT managers

Governor’s office



OSC Examination

Determine deliverables

Hardware maintenance

Manual

Replacement parts



OSC Examination

Determine deliverables

Software maintenance

System enhancements

Basic routines

Routine upgrades/version releases



OSC Examination

Vendor Resources vs. Price

Direct Costs

Personnel

Parts



OSC Examination
Personnel
Salaries + Fringe Benefits
Titles and/or skill sets
Total FTEs

Parts
OGS contracts
Market prices



OSC Examination

 January 2009 

OSC updates DCJS on findings

Who’s Who @ DCJS

> $765,000



OSC Examination

After OSC findings meeting

DCJS commences negotiations

CIO invites OSC into contract 
negotiations with vendor



Key Techniques

1. Determine Need
2. Assess Competition
3. Gather Information
4. Welcome OSC
5. Run the Numbers
6. Negotiate



5. Run the Numbers
 If this is the only game in town, how do 

we measure reasonable profit?

 Go back to the fundamental objective: 
“Maximize value for the Shareholders”

Maximizing value - tangibles/intangibles

 EVMS and other Project Management

 Incentives/Penalties

 NYS can be a reference for this vendor



5. Run the Numbers
 Gross Margin, sometimes Gross 

Profit Margin is the difference 
between sales (revenue) dollars and 
production costs

 Gross margin is the amount of 
contribution to the business 
enterprise, after paying for direct-
fixed and direct-variable unit costs, 
required to cover overheads



5. Run the Numbers
Gross margin is
 Gross profit divided by sales either 

overall or for a particular endeavor or 
segment. 

 An indicator of the degree of profitability 
resulting from use of labor and 
materials – comparing one to another.

 The most widely used because it is an 
apples to apples number across varying 
types of products or endeavors.



Government Resource

SEC Guide to Financial 
Statements 

http://www.sec.gov/investor/pu
bs/begfinstmtguide.htm 



Gross Margins Comparison 
– Quarter End March 2010

Apple

41.7

Dell

17.2
Apple sells $583 worth of stuff for $1,000.

For Dell to hit $1,000 in sales,
it has to provide $824 worth of parts,
of which Windows is only about $65 dollars.



Gross Margins at Apple
 Apple: Aggressive iPad Pricing 

Will Lower Gross Margins in Q3 
Aggressive pricing on the iPad is going to result in 
lower gross margins for Apple during the June 
quarter, according to company executives. Apple 
CFO Peter Oppenheimer told analysts in a 
conference call Tuesday that he expects gross 
margins to fall from 41.7% in the just-
completed March quarter to 36% in the June 
quarter, and that some of this decline is due to 
aggressive price. - April 20th, 2010 – Bryan 
Chaffin, the MacObserver



Half a Percent
 Dell's Results Beat Forecasts, But 

Gross Margin Falls 
Dell beat Wall Street's profit and revenue 
estimates in the second quarter and said it 
expected demand for PCs among corporate 
customers to remain steady … but the company's 
gross profit margin lagged Wall Street 
expectations and its shares fell in after-hours 
trading. Dell said its adjusted gross profit margin 
was 17.2 percent in the quarter, below the 17.7 
percent expected by analysts.  - Reuters August 
19, 2010.



5. Run the Numbers

Morpho’s gross margin?

Not published

Competitor’s gross margin?



Cogent Systems Announces 
First Quarter Results

PASADENA, Calif., May 05, 2009 (BUSINESS WIRE) 
-- Cogent Systems (Nasdaq:COGT) today announced 
financial results for the first quarter ended March 31, 
2009. First quarter 2009 revenues were $31.0 
million, an increase of 26% over revenue of $24.6 
million in the same year ago period. Net income on a 
GAAP basis for the first quarter of 2009 was $9.0 
million, or $0.10 per diluted share. This compares to 
GAAP net income of $14.4 million, or $0.16 per 
diluted share in the same year ago period, which 
included $10.0 million, or $0.07 per share, in 
settlement income related to the Company's 
settlement agreement with Northrop Grumman.



Gross Margin up 1,000 Points
“Gross margin was up over 1,000 basis 
points sequentially to 68.4% during our first 
fiscal quarter, well above our target 
range,” commented Paul Kim, Chief Financial 
Officer of Cogent. "We generated $26 million 
in cash this quarter, ending the quarter with 
cash and investments of approximately $506.4 
million, or $5.59 per share. Additionally, 
deferred revenue increased to $80.8 million at 
the end of the first quarter, up $5.9 million 
from the immediately preceding quarter."





5. Run the Numbers

Number scenarios 
– DCJS projections













Summary
1. Determine Need
2. Assess Competition
3. Gather Information
4. Welcome OSC
5. Run the Numbers
6. Negotiate



6. Negotiate
Artful Negotiations
Win-win
Leverage resources
Commissioner
OSC

Reasonable Profit – targeted 
gross margin



6. Negotiate
 A vendor’s primary goal is to sell their 

product at a target profit and grow their 
market share – they especially need NYS 
for that second “growth” objective

 Agencies may feel the need to try and 
“beat up” the vendor for pricing and 
terms

 To be successful in negotiations one 
should understand both their own needs 
and those of their suppliers



6. Negotiate
Don’t blame me, OSC has to 

approve this

Timing is everything

Possibly segment the 
procurement?

What costs can you cut?  Fixed? 
Variable?



6. Negotiate
Old contract expired March 2009

OSC findings meeting Jan 6, 
2009

Negotiations began Jan 2009 

Month-to-Month written 
extensions

Same level of service



“No” doesn’t always mean “No”

 Industry reputation
NYS is big business
NYS reference

Region/Home Office
Approval Required?
Meeting 

6. Negotiate



Don’t blame me, OSC has to 
approve this

OSC can help

Possibly segment the 
procurement?

What costs can you cut?  
Fixed? Variable?

6. Negotiate



Timing is everything

 Time factors

 End of year or quarter

 Forecast, written, installed

 Trade shows/publicity

6. Negotiate





Result

$1.8 million savings over 3 years



Summary

1. Determine Need
2. Assess Competition
3. Gather Information
4. Welcome OSC
5. Run the Numbers
6. Negotiate



G-Bulletin
Equipment and Information 
Technology Software and 
Applications Maintenance 
Contracts

 Assess need
 Determine price reasonableness
 Essential contract language



Thank You!

&

Questions?



Other Sources

The Elephant in the Software 
Maintenance Room

Negotiating Better Maintenance 
Terms

http://dealarchitect.typepad.com/deal_architect/2009/02/the-elephant-in-the-software-maintenance-room.html
http://www.cio.com/article/29690/Negotiating_Better_Maintenance_Terms
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